
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
Thursday, 11 November 2010 

1.00 pm 
Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 

 
MEMBERS ATTENDING OFFICERS ATTENDING 

Councillor Garth Barnes�Councillor Penny 
Hall�Councillor Diggory Seacome 

Sarah Farooqi, Regulatory Solicitor 
Manager�Louis Krog, Senior Licensing 
Officer 
 

Agenda  
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 

 
2. APOLOGIES 

 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 
4. DETERMINATION OF APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES 

LICENCE 
Chemistry, Gibson House, St. James Square, Cheltenham 
 

(Pages 3 - 126) 

 
Contact Officer: Rachael SandersonRachael Sanderson, Democracy Assistant, 

01242 264130 01242 774130 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
2 
 



 
3 
 

Public Information 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure at the Municipal Offices 
 
(i) In the event of a fire you will hear a continuous alarm. 
 In the event of a bomb alert the alarm will sound in repeated short bursts. 
 
(ii) Members, officers and the public should leave the building promptly and in a 

quiet and orderly fashion using the nearest available escape routes and 
assemble on the Promenade footway by the War Memorial. 

 
Attendance at Meetings - Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
Meetings are open to the public and a limited amount of public seating is available. 
Copies of the agenda will also be available. You may be asked to leave the meeting if 
any “exempt” (confidential) business is considered. This will normally be shown on the 
agenda 
 
Inspection of Papers - Local Government  
(Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
We can also arrange for copies of individual decision records, reports or minutes to be 
supplied. If you wish to inspect minutes or reports (other than those which are exempt) 
relating to any item on this agenda, please contact Democratic Services. The 
background papers listed in a report may also be inspected. Please notify Democratic 
Services who will arrange with the report author for papers to be made available to 
you at a mutually convenient time. 
 
All meeting information is published on the Council’s Internet website at: 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk.  
 
If you have difficulty reading this agenda please let us know 
and we will do everything we can to meet your requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
4 
 

Licensing Sub Committee Procedure 
 

Note: REPORTS FOR SUB COMMITTEE’S WILL NOT INCLUDE AN OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION BUT SHALL INCLUDE LICENSING COMMENTS.  
 
The Hearing 
 
1) The sub committee will conduct the hearing in accordance with the statutory 
regulations on hearings and, where appropriate, the council’s constitution. 
 
2) Applicants / licensees will be invited to attend the sub committee and be 
represented if they so choose, they will be sent a full copy of the report about their 
application / case including all appendices and details of objections / representations.   
If they do not attend the committee can decide whether or not to deal with their item in 
their absence on the basis of the written report and the procedure as set out below.  
 
3) The hearings will be held in public unless the licensing authority decides to exclude 
the public for all or part of the hearing because the public interest in doing so 
outweighs any other public interest consideration.  A chair is elected who then 
introduces the members and officers and explains the procedure to be followed.  The 
chair will introduce, in turn, each item on the agenda, briefly stating what it is about 
and inviting the parties to be seated.  The chair will stress that the meeting will take 
the form of a discussion and that cross examination will not be permitted unless he 
considers it necessary for proper consideration of the matter before them. 
 
4) Members who intend to vote must be present in the meeting room throughout the 
sub committee’s consideration of an item so that they hear all of the evidence and 
hear / participate in the debate. 
 
5) The report author or other appropriate officer presents the report, outlining the key 
issues and any licensing comments. This must be done in a maximum of 5-10 minutes 
unless the chair expressly approves otherwise.  Members and the applicant / licensee/ 
responsible authorities / interested parties will have the opportunity of asking the 
officer questions.  
 
6) The applicant / licensee (or their representative) will present their application and, if 
they choose to, call witnesses.  This must be done in a maximum of 5-10 minutes 
unless the chair expressly approves otherwise.  The applicant / licensee (or their 
representative) has the right to present their case without undue interruptions and 
when they have done so questions may be asked by members and by officers / 
responsible authorities / interested parties.   
 
7) Responsible authorities / interested parties will be given the opportunity to make 
representations through their appointed spokesperson, this must be done in a 
maximum of 5 - 10 minutes unless the chair expressly approves otherwise.  The 
applicant / licensee, members and officers will have the opportunity of asking the 
spokesperson questions. 
 
8) The applicant / licensee (or their representative) will be given the final right of reply. 
 
9) The sub committee will debate the application before making a decision. 
 



 
5 
 

10) The decision will be confirmed in writing giving reason(s) for the decision and 
details of any appeal rights.  The decision notice / letter will be sent as soon as 
practicable after the meeting and any statutory time-scales will be followed. 
 
 
Approved & Adopted Licensing Committee 02/02/07 (Min 9 refers) 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



        

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 

DATE: …………… 
 

DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor 
 
You are asked to complete this form if you intend to declare an interest in connection 
with any item on this agenda. 
 
Please hand any completed form to the committee administrator at the meeting. 
 
You are reminded that you are still required to declare your interest orally at the 
commencement of the committee's consideration of the matter. 
 

Agenda 
item 

*Personal 
interest 

*Prejudicial 
Personal 
interest 

Nature of interest 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
The Council’s Code of Members Conduct explains what is a ‘Personal Interest’ and a 
‘Prejudicial Interest’.  The Code is set out in Part 5A of the Council’s Constitution.  

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Chemistry   
 Page 1 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

Agenda item: 4 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Licensing Sub Committee – 11 November 2010 
 

Licensing Act 2003: Determination of Application for a Premises 
Licence 
 

Chemistry Gibson House St. James Square Cheltenham Gloucestershire 
 

Report of the Senior Licensing Officer 
 

1. Introduction  
1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) allows applicants to apply for a premises licence at any 

time. In this case, an application was received on 16 September 2010 from Headline 
Entertainments Limited in respect of Chemistry Gibson House St. James Square 
Cheltenham Gloucestershire.  A copy of the application is included at Appendix A (See 
pages 11-28) 

 
1.2 The applicant has requested for a premises licence to permit:- 

 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol     Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 On & Off 
Performance of Dance    Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Exhibition of a Film     Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Performance of Live Music    Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Performance of Recorded Music   Monday to Saturday 11:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Prov'n of Facilities for Dancing    Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Prov'n of Facilities for Making Music   Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
Late Night Refreshment     Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00 Indoors 
      
 

1.3 The applicant has applied for the following non-standard timings to be applied to the 
licence:- 

1.4  
The approved non standard hours (Mondays to Saturdays) were 08:00 - 02:00 during the 
Cheltenham Gold Cup Festival Week; an additional hour to the standard and non-standard 
times when British Summertime commences; New Year's Eve, from the end of permitted 
hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day; and, alcohol 
sales and late night refreshment in connection with the screening of international sporting 
events subject to a maximum of 12 days per year, with 21 days prior written notice to the 
licensing authority and the police and hours limited to one hour either side of the official 
start and finish times of the event (the decision of the licensing authority as to what 
constitutes international sporting events and official start and finish times of such events 
will be final). 

 
1.5 If this application is approved a premises licence would be issued. 
 

1.6  Implications 
1.6.1   Financial Contact officer: Sarah Didcote 

E-mail: sarah.dicote@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 26 4125 

Agenda Item 4
Page 3



Chemistry   
 Page 2 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

1.6.2   Legal A sub committee is required to discharge its duty and determine an 
application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. These 
objectives, which are set out in section 4(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, are: 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; (b) public safety; (c) the prevention 
of public nuisance; and (d) the protection of children from harm. 
 
Sarah Farooqi 
E-mail: Sarah.Farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272693 

 
2. Application (Ref. 10/01568/PRMA) 
2.1 Applicant: Headline Entertainments Limited  
2.2 Agent: Maitland Walker Solicitors 
2.3 Premises: Chemistry Gibson House St. James Square Cheltenham Gloucestershire 
2.4 Steps to promote the four licensing objectives that are identified in this application:  
 

a) Maximum numbers of persons permitted: Total for Premises 665; Second Floor 100; Upper 
Mezzanine Fioor 50; Lower Mezzanine Floor 165; Ground Floor 200; Basement 150 
 
b) For a continuous period commencing with the opening of business and ending thirty minutes 
after the premises close a minimum of four staff shall be provided to supervise the outside of the 
premises. Their duties shall be to control and discourage anti-social behaviour of patrons who are 
entering or leaving the premises. Their duties shall also include patrolling the area designated on 
the plan. 
 
c) All doors and windows, except the main entrance, are to be kept closed during any 
entertainment. Fire escapes shall be kept closed at all times and shall only be used to vacate the 
building in the event of an emergency or after the conclusion of the entertainment. 
 
d) Amplified music or public address shall be undertaken only through the sound system fitting 
with a noise limiting device. The device shall be set at a level approved by the Council's 
Environmental Health Officer. In addition, control measures to prevent the breakout of noise shall 
be present and maintained. 
 
e) There will be an extended winding down period commencing with slower music at a reduced 
volume at ten minutes prior to the terminal hour changing to walkout music at a quieter volume 
than before until the building is cleared. 
 
f) On days when the premises are open, litter shall be removed at the end of each trading session 
from areas to which the public have access as of right within the area designated on the plan. 
 
g) Closed circuit television shall be provided both inside and outside the premises to a standard 
approved by the Council's Community Safety Manager. 
 
h) In the event of a new Manager being appointed to the premise, a "handover" meeting between 
the Council's Public Protection Division, the existing Manager and the new Manager shall be 
arranged to ensure an understanding of the particular circumstances relating to the premises. 
 
i) After 21:00 hours, SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the minimum ratio of 
1:100 customers (or part thereof at the premises).  
 
j) Active member of 'Nightsafe'. 
 
k) CCTV shall be maintained in good working order, and recordings shall be kept for a minimum 
of 28 days and be provided to Officers of the Council and police on request. 
 
I) Drinks shall not be served in glass 'pint' containers (beer glasses). These shall be substituted 
with polycarbonate/plastic 'glasses'. 

Page 4



Chemistry   
 Page 3 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
m) A 30 minute 'drinking up' time shall be provided to allow appropriate dispersal, use of 
lavatories, etc. 
 
n) The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) shall maintain an active membership of the 
Nightsafe/Cheltenham innkeepers Association (or successor 'pubwatch' body). 
 
o) No discounting of alcoholic drinks (below the tariff in place for a minimum of one week) shall 
take place on Fridays and Saturdays after 18:00 hours. 
 
p) Non alcoholic and low alcohol drinks shall be promoted especially to 'designated drivers' of 
groups. 
 
q) A closed door policy will be operated with no admission or re-admission on New Years Eve 
from 23:30 to 04:00 hours on New Year's Day. 
 
r) The CCT system shall be maintained in good working order, shall record at all times that the 
premises are open, and recordings shall be kept for 28 days (14 days for digital systems) and be 
provided to officers of the council and the police on request. 
 
s) Toughened glasses shall be used. 
 
t) All windows in areas where regulated entertainment takes place shall be kept closed during 
such entertainment. 
 
u) All external doors to parts of the premises where regulated entertainment takes place shall be 
kept shut during these activities except momentarily for the purposes of normal access and 
egress or in an emergency. 
 
v) The designated premises supervisor shall ensure effective overall management of live or 
recorded entertainment, such as by monitoring noise levels outside the premises, to ensure that 
noise from such activities is inaudible inside nearby noise sensitive premises. 
 
w) A noise limiting device shall be used between any amplifier and loudspeaker whenever live or 
recorded entertainment occurs to ensure that noise from such activities is inaudible inside nearby 
noise sensitive premises. 
 
x) No music shall be generated in the upper bar area without the provision of an acoustic lobby 
being installed, to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, to the fire door to the North East of 
that bar area. 
 
y) When a DJ is present on any night he/she shall make announcements before the termination 
of entertainment to request consumers to leave the premises quietly and respect the peace and 
quiet of the local residents. 
 
z) Unaccompanied persons under the age of 18 years shall not be permitted on the premises 
other than at events that are especially organised for the youth market. At any such events the 
licensee's general policies and those relating to admission, child protection and the code of 
conduct for staff shall be adhered to. 

 
 

3. Responsible Authorities  
 

3.1 Gloucestershire Constabulary - No Representations Received 
 
3.2 Environmental Health – There has been no objection from the Environmental Health 

Department but the Environmental Health Officer sought agreement on the following conditions: 
 

Page 5



Chemistry   
 Page 4 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

1) All doors and windows, except the main entrance, are to be kept closed during any 
entertainment, except momentarily for the purposes of normal access and egress or in an 
emergency.  
 
2) Fire escapes shall be kept closed at all times and shall only be used to vacate the building in 
the event of an emergency. 
 
3) A noise limiting device shall be used between any amplifier and loudspeaker whenever live or 
recorded entertainment occurs to ensure that noise from such activities is inaudible inside nearby 
noise sensitive premises. The device shall be set at a level approved by the Council's 
Environmental Health Officer. In addition, control measures to prevent the breakout of noise shall 
be present and maintained. 
 
4) There will be an extended winding down period commencing with slower music at a reduced 
volume at ten minutes prior to the terminal hour changing to walkout music at a quieter volume 
than before until the building is cleared.   
 
5) On days when the premises are open, litter shall be removed at the end of each trading 
session from areas to which the public have access as of right within the area designated on the 
plan. 
 
6) In the event of a new Manager being appointed to the premises, a 'handover' meeting between 
the Council's Public Protection Division, the existing Manager and the new Manager shall be 
arranged to ensure an understanding of the particular circumstances relating to the premises. 
 
7) The designated premises supervisor shall ensure effective overall management of live or 
recorded entertainment, such as by monitoring noise levels outside the premises, to ensure that 
noise from such activities is inaudible inside nearby noise sensitive premises. 
 
8) No music shall be generated in the upper bar area without the provision of an acoustic lobby 
being installed, to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, to the fire door to the North East of 
that bar area. 
 

3.3 Other Responsible Authorities - No Representations Received 
 

4. Interested Parties   
4.1 Representations have been received from 43 Interested Parties included at Appendix B 

(See pages 29-119) 
 
4.2 Interested Parties have objected on the grounds of crime & disorder, public safety, the 

protection of children from harm and public nuisance. 
 
4.3 The concerns raised by interested parties are as follows:  

 
1) Concern over noise emanating from the premises as a result of people attending the night 
club, the premises itself and people smoking outside which will disturb sleep.  
 
2) Concern over crime and disorder resulting from drunken revellers such as damage to property 
and abusive behaviour. 
 
c) A possible increase in traffic and congestion in the surrounding areas.  There is also a concern 
that the early opening hours of the premises and the possible increase in road traffic will result in 
an increase risk to the safety of children attending school and nursery in the area. 
 
3) Concern over drunken behaviour such as vomiting and urinating in the streets and gardens.  
 
4) A repeat of past experiences relating to noise, nuisance and anti-social behaviour emanating 
from the club as a result of cars revving, fornication in the surrounding gardens and rubbish left 
scattered. 

Page 6



Chemistry   
 Page 5 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
5) Crowding outside the premises will result in people having to walk into the road to get past. 
 
6) Concern over a possible increase in business insurance as a result of the potential of damage. 
 
7) Concern that granting the licence will exacerbate existing problems in the area such as noise, 
anti-social behaviour, rubbish etc. 
 
8) Concern that granting this application will damage to property prices in the area. 
 
9) Neighbouring properties being subject to vibrations and the “beat” as a result of the bass. 
 
10) Concern that granting this licence can effect the growth and the regeneration of the general 
area. 
 
11) Concern that granting this licence will impact the quality of life with some residents having to 
get up early in the morning for work and late night noise will disturb their sleep. 
 
12) Noise emanating from early morning deliveries and refuse collection. 
 
13) Houses in the area are listed (i.e. St Georges Terrace) and as a result these properties 
cannot get permission to replace windows with double glazing which causes a problem with 
noise. 
 
14) With the addition to several new residential blocks, the noise can no longer dissipate naturally 
as it did previously when the residential blocks were not there.   
 
15) In addition to new residential buildings, there has also been a new Waitrose supermarket, 
new office blocks and attractive new walkways and cycle ways been built and the grant of this 
application will make the area less appealing. 
 
16) There is also a school, church and day nursery in the immediate vicinity of the premises.  The 
school, church and nursery are open early in the morning with the church staying open in the 
evening and being used over the weekend.  There is concern over the grant of this application 
will encroach on the activities of schools and church. 
 
17) Since the club has closed, the problems associated with the club have disappeared. 
 
18) The normal opening hours for the premises has historically been associated with crime and 
disorder and this causes concern for the children and parents who attend the nursery during the 
day. 
 
19) Invalid public notice by virtue of it not listing the applicant’s head office address and address 
of the applicant. 
 
20) Town Centre has reached saturation point and there are plenty of other premises who offer 
the same experience. 
 
21) South side of St James Sq is outside the sight of club security stewards and CCTV.  The 
resulting nuisance and anti-social behaviour will therefore be beyond the club’s surveillance. 
 
22) Anticipated that there will be drinks promotions that will exacerbate the situation. 
 
23) Planning permission has been granted by Cheltenham Borough Council for additional flats 
which imply that it wishes to turn the area into a primarily residential area. 
 

Page 7



Chemistry   
 Page 6 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

24) The North Gloucestershire Education Improvement Partnership, Burton House St. James Sq 
has expressed concern that the grant of this application will have a negative effect on their 
students and operations.  There is concern that the students will have access to alcohol and 
cigarettes and there is a possibility that the students will come into confrontation with customers 
from the premises.  There is also concern that noise emanating from the premises will affect 
classes and exams.  
 
25) The Monkey Puzzle Day Nursery, Ivanhoe House St. James Sq has expressed concern that 
the grant of this application will affect the operation of the nursery.  Historically, the early opening 
of the premises has resulted in crime and disorder issues which will have an effect on the use of 
the nursery during the day.  The nursery also expressed concern for the safety of their equipment 
left outside over night and the possibility of theft and vandalism. 
 
26) Concern has been raised over the fact that older properties such as Gibson House do not 
have effective sound insulation which will have an effect on noise levels. 
 
27) Finally, there are a high number of elderly residents living in the area.  Granting this 
application will cause them to be fearful of going out during the operating hours of the premises. 
 
            

5. Local Policy Considerations 
5.1 The 2003 Act introduces a unified system of regulation which through two new types of 

licenses: the premises licence and the personal licence (club premises certificates for 
qualifying clubs).  The Borough Council,  as the licensing authority, is responsible for 
licensing all outlets in the borough that sell or supply alcohol or carry out any other 
‘licensable activities’; public entertainment, theatre, cinema, or late night refreshment. 

 
5.2 The new system is underpinned by four objectives: i) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

ii) public safety; iii) the prevention of public nuisance; and, iv) the protection of children 
from harm.  The licensing authority must promote these objectives in carrying out its 
functions.   

 
5.3  The Councils adopted licensing policy statement (Council 10/12/07) includes the following: 

i) Each objective is of equal importance and the licensing authority has developed 
policies relating to each objective. The objectives are the only matters to be taken account 
in determining applications and applying conditions. (Paragraph 1.2) 

 
ii) The licensing authority will only apply terms and conditions to licences which promote 
one or more of the licensing objectives and are relevant to the individual circumstances of 
the application.  Conditions may be drawn from those set out in Appendix B and / or 
tailored to particular circumstances and they will be focused on matters within the control 
of the individual licensees and others granted relevant permissions. (Paragraph 2.4) 

 
iii) The licensing authority will expect all individual applicants to address the licensing 
objectives in their operating schedule having regard to the premises, the licensable 
activities to be provided, the operational procedures, the nature of the location and the 
interests of the local community.  The licensing authority expects that any conditions that 
are necessary will, in the first instance, be identifiable from prospective licensees or 
certificate holders’ risk assessments.  

 
iv) Applicants will have to translate their assessments into measures which promote one 
or more of the licensing objectives and record them in their operating schedule.  
(Paragraph 2.5) 

 
v) The licensing authority will not impose any conditions unless, following the receipt of 
relevant representations, it has used its discretion at a hearing and been satisfied of the 
validity of those concerns. (Paragraph 2.5) 

 

Page 8



Chemistry   
 Page 7 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

vi) The licensing authority will consider every application on its individual merits with 
regard to this policy statement and to the Licensing Committee’s Probity Code (available at 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk under ‘L’ in the A-Z of services).  The licensing authority will seek 
to balance the needs of the wider community, local community and commercial premises 
and activities, against those who may be concerned about adverse impacts from licensed 
premises. The views of vocal individuals or groups will not necessarily prevail over the 
general interests of the community.  In every case the licensing authority will focus on 
disproportionate or unreasonable impacts of the licensable activities on people living, 
working and sleeping in the vicinity. (Paragraph 2.7) 

 
vii) Cheltenham Borough Council, in its role as a licensing authority, wishes to do all in 
its power to protect the amenity of residents and businesses in the vicinity of licensed 
premises, and for these purposes ‘vicinity’ is taken to mean the immediate area around 
licensed premises.  As the council is fully aware of the importance of the licensed trade in 
terms of the local economy and its culture and leisure aspiration, it will seek to work in 
partnership with all interested parties to ensure a mutual and productive co-existence. 
(Paragraph 7.2) 
 
viii) When considering licence applications, the licensing authority will take into account 
the location of the premises and the type and construction of the building as well as the 
adequacy of measures proposed to deal with the potential for nuisance and / or antisocial 
behaviour having regard to all the circumstances of the application.  (Paragraph 7.4) 
 
ix) The licensing authority will consistently seek to ensure that its judgements about 
what constitutes public nuisance are balanced, as are decisions about any conditions that 
are considered necessary to prevent it.  (Paragraph 7.5) 

 
x) In reaching a judgement on the individual merits of applications, the licensing 
authority will have regard to the implications for nuisance generation and the impacts on 
residents that are posed by operating hours and types of regulated entertainment.  The 
licensing authority will take into account requests for terminal hours in the light of the:- 
• environmental quality, 
• residential amenity, 
• character or function of a particular area, 
• nature of the proposed activities to be provided at the premises. 

Consideration may, however, be given to imposing stricter controls on noise and 
disturbance from particular licensed premises, such as those in mainly residential areas. 
(Paragraph 10.6) 

 
xi) Consideration may, however, be given to impose stricter controls on noise and 
disturbance from the particular premises, such as those in mainly residential area. 
(Paragraph 10.6) 

 
6.  National Guidance 
6.1   Guidance has been issued under Section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003.  
 
6.2   Para 2.32 of the Guidance states “The 2003 Act requires licensing authorities (following 

receipt of relevant representations) and responsible authorities, through representations, to 
make judgements about what constitutes public nuisance and what is necessary to prevent 
it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on impacts of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including doing 
business) in the vicinity that are disproportionate and unreasonable, The issues will mainly 
concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.” 

 

Page 9



Chemistry   
 Page 8 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

6.3   Para 2.33 of the Guidance states “Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many 
pieces of legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its 
broad common law meaning. It is important to remember that the prevention of public 
nuisance could therefore include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting a few people living 
locally as well as major disturbance affecting the whole community. It may also include in 
appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of interested parties (as defined in the 2003 Act) in the vicinity of licensed 
premises.” 

 
6.4   Para 2.35 of the Guidance states “As with all conditions, it will be clear that conditions 

relating to noise nuisance may not be necessary in certain circumstances where the 
provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Noise Act 1996, or the Clean 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 adequately protect those living in the vicinity 
of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of Licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers 
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may 
not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and additional conditions 
may be necessary.” 

 
6.5  Para 2.36 of the Guidance states “Where applications have given rise to representations, 

any necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive 
periods. For example, music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-evening until 
either late evening or early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be 
attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping in certain circumstances, conditions maybe 
necessary.” 

 
6.6   Para 2.37 of the Guidance states “Measures to control light pollution will also require 

careful thought. Bright lighting outside premises considered necessary to prevent crime 
and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, 
Licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.” 

 
6.7   Para 2.38 of the Guidance states “In the context of preventing public nuisance, it is again 

essential that conditions are focused on measures within the direct control of the licence 
holder or club. Conditions relating to public nuisance caused by the anti-social behaviour of 
customers once they are beyond the control of the licence holder, club or premises 
management cannot be justified and will not serve to promote the licensing objectives.” 

 
6.8   Para 9.8 of the Guidance states “A representation will only be relevant if it is likely to effect 

the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.” 
 
6.9  Para 10.9 of the Guidance states “The 2003 Act provides that where an operating 

schedule or club operating schedule has been submitted with an application and there 
have been no relevant representations made by responsible authorities, the licence or 
certificate must be granted subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the 
schedule accompanying the application and any mandatory conditions required by the Act 
itself.” 

 
6.10  Para 10.11 of the Guidance states “The licensing authority may not impose conditions 

unless its discretion has been engaged following relevant representations and it has been 
satisfied at a hearing of the necessity to impose conditions. It may only then impose 
conditions that are necessary to promote one or more of the licensing objectives. Such 
conditions must also be expressed in unequivocal and unambiguous terms to avoid legal 
dispute.” 

 
6.11  Para 10.13 of the Guidance on proportionality states “The Act requires that Licensing 

conditions should be tailored to the size, style, characteristics and activities taking place at 
the premises concerned. This rules out standardised conditions which ignore these 
individual aspects. It is important that conditions are proportionate and properly recognise 
significant differences between venues.”  

Page 10



Chemistry   
 Page 9 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
6.12   Para 10.15 of the Guidance states with regard to duplication with other statutory provisions 

that “Licensing Authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and 
proportionate for the promotion for the licensing objectives. If other existing law already 
places certain statutory responsibilities on an employer or operator of premises, it cannot 
be necessary to impose the same or similar duties.” 

 
6.13  Paragraph 10.20 of the Guidance states there is no general presumption in favour of 

lengthening licensing hours and the four licensing objectives should be paramount 
considerations at all times. Where there are objections to an application and the committee 
believes that changing the licensing hours would undermine the licensing objectives, they 
may reject the application or grant it with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from 
those requested. 

        
7.  Licensing Comments 
 
7.1 This application must be determined on its individual merits and in view of promoting the 

licensing objectives, which are: 
 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) public safety; 
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 
(d) the protection of children from harm.  

 
7.2 A plan of the location of the premises is attached Appendix C (See page 120). 
 
7.3 The plan of the proposed premises is submitted with the application is attached at 

Appendix D (See page 121-122). 
 
7.4 The premises has been closed for a number of years and on its individual merits, Members 

must decide what weight to add to comments relating to problems associated with the 
premises when it was last in operation. 

 
7.5 Members are to note that the area referred to under points 2.4 (f) covers the following: 

 
Ambrose Street as far as the start of the bowling green, 
Clarence Street as far as the (farthest) East side of St Gregory's church, 
 St James Square as far as the mini-roundabout at the junction with Jessop Avenue, 
Knapp Road as far as the far (West) side of Somerset House, 
The un-named road alongside the club (that leads to St Gregory's School) as far as the 
start of the school. 

 
7.6 The concerns over a possible increase in traffic and congestion will only be relevant to this 

application where this is likely to have an effect on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
7.7 Cheltenham Borough Council does have powers under the Environmental Health 

Protection Act to deal with the problem of rubbish and litter. 
 
7.8 A possible increase in business insurance and the impact this application will have on 

property prices are not relevant to this application by virtue of the fact that neither has any 
bearing on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
7.9 Members are to note that the public notice displayed outside the premises was in 

accordance with the relevant regulations.  
 

Page 11



Chemistry   
 Page 10 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

7.10 Members are to note that there are two CCTV cameras situated in the vicinity of the 
premises, one on the roundabout at St James Sq & Jessop Ave and the other on the 
roundabout on the corner of St James Sq Knapp Road & Clarence Street.  There are also 
CCTV cameras fixed to the exterior of the premises covering all external areas. 

 
7.11 There have been no comments from Cheltenham Borough Council’s Planning Department 

made on this application and as a result, the speculation relating to the intention of the 
Planning Department to turn the area into a primarily residential area is not relevant. 

 
7.12 In light of the fact that there has been no objection from either the Planning or 

Environmental Health Department, the comments relating to the age of the property and 
the fact that the property does not have sufficient sound insulation will only be relevant if 
Members feel that this will have an adverse effect on the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives.  Members are to note that the conditions sought by the Environmental Health 
Officer, in addition to the operating schedule, does address the concern over noise 
pollution. 
 

7.13 Members are to note that the comments relating to the deteriorating effect the grant of this 
application will have on the growth, desirability and development of the area will only be 
relevant to this application insofar as the grant of the application is likely to adversely affect 
the licensing objectives. 
 

7.14 The Committee must have regard to all of the representations made and the evidence it 
hears. The Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives which can include: 
• Granting the application as requested; 
• Modifying the conditions attached to the licence; or 
• Rejecting all or part of the application. 

 
 
Background Papers Service Records 

 
Licensing Act 2003 
 
S.182 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council’s Licensing Act 2003 
Licensing Policy Statement Approved by Council 
30 March 2009 
 

Report Author  Contact officer: Mr Louis Krog 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 775004 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 11 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 13



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 12 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 14



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 13 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 15



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 14 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 16



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 15 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 17



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 16 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 18



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 17 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 19



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 18 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 20



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 19 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 21



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 20 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 22



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 21 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 23



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 22 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 24



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 23 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 25



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 24 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 26



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 25 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 27



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 26 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 28



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 27 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 29



Appendix A 

Chemistry   
 Page 28 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

Page 30



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 29 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 31



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 30 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 32



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 31 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 33



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 32 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 34



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 33 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 35



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 34 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 36



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 35 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 37



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 36 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 
 

Page 38



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 37 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 39



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 38 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 40



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 39 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 41



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 40 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 42



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 41 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 43



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 42 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 44



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 43 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 45



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 44 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 46



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 45 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 47



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 46 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 48



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 47 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 49



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 48 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 50



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 49 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 51



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 50 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 52



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 51 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 53



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 52 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 54



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 53 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 55



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 54 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 56



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 55 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 57



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 56 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 58



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 57 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 59



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 58 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 60



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 59 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 61



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 60 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 62



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 61 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 63



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 62 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 64



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 63 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 65



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 64 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 66



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 65 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 67



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 66 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 68



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 67 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 69



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 68 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 70



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 69 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 71



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 70 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 72



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 71 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 73



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 72 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 74



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 73 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 75



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 74 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 76



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 75 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 77



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 76 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 78



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 77 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 79



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 78 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 80



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 79 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 81



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 80 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 82



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 81 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 83



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 82 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 84



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 83 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 85



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 84 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 86



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 85 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 87



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 86 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 88



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 87 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 89



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 88 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 90



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 89 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 91



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 90 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 92



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 91 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 93



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 92 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 94



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 93 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 95



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 94 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 96



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 95 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 97



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 96 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 98



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 97 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 99



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 98 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 100



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 99 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 101



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 100 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 102



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 101 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 103



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 102 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 104



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 103 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 105



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 104 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 106



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 105 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 107



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 106 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 108



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 107 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 109



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 108 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 110



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 109 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 111



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 110 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 112



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 111 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 113



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 112 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 114



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 113 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 115



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 114 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 115 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 116 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 118



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 117 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 118 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 120



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 119 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

Page 121



Appendix B 

Chemistry   
 Page 120 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 Page 122



Appendix C 

Chemistry   
 Page 121 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

P
age 123



Appendix D 

Chemistry   
 Page 122 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 124



Appendix D 

Chemistry   
 Page 123 of 123 Last updated 04 November 2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 DETERMINATION OF APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE

